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Digitising public procurement
As customers, we are all used to digital systems as part of day-to-day business.
We look after our personal finances through online banking and we find it easy to
buy various kinds of products from online stores located in Finland and abroad. In
Finland the society is highly digitised, and this has brought savings and boosted
efficiency in many ways.
In public procurement, digitisation has not progressed quite as far, but the next few
years will be interesting in this respect. A new Public Procurement Directive was
approved by the European Parliament in January 2014. The directive requires that
all public procurements be opened to tenders electronically after a transition
period. I look forward to a more extensive use of electronic solutions in joint
procurement procedures.
Here at Hansel, we are currently working on an electronic tendering system for
use by the government. We believe that digitisation of the procurement process
offers many benefits for customers and suppliers alike. It will reduce the
administrative burden and increase the transparency of transactions. This may also cut down the number of
complaints and appeals.
Digitisation is important also from the perspective of market functionality. According to reports by the European
Commission, small and medium-sized enterprises in particular benefit from e-procurement. Faster information
flows, wider tendering opportunities and simplified processes are bound to increase the willingness of SMEs to
participate in public tenders, which in their current form can sometimes appear heavy and burdensome.
Another major trend besides the digitisation of society is the growing significance of corporate social responsibility
(CSR). Buyers are emphasising CSR in their procurement processes, and we have taken CSR aspects into
account in our operations for a long time. More on this in the Corporate Responsibility Report, which has been
verified in accordance with the new GRI4 guidelines.
Our operating model and tools may change, but Hansel’s mission will remain the same: increasing government
efficiency and saving taxpayers’ money through centralised procurement. Electronic systems will offer us
increasingly interesting opportunities for this in the future.
Anssi Pihkala
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Key figures
Central procurements by sector
EUR thousand

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009 Change
12/13

Procurement sector

Category

ICT procurement

Data communications

32 299

30 491

25 413

23 017

19 250

6%

ICT equipment

79 585

83 705

81 480

84 171

93 122

-5 %

Software

27 834

27 410

22 452

23 870

21 572

2%

ICT services

31 935

26 321

29 379

34 899

36 975

21 %

171 653 167 927 158 724 165 956 170 918

2%

Total
Procurement of administrative
services

Financial management

51 356

40 141

31 463

35 702

43 795

28 %

Organisational and HR
development

86 605

83 893

76 264

68 979

52 605

3%

Travel and conference
management

78 784

73 505

72 799

71 811

73 342

7%

216 745 197 538 180 525 176 492 169 743

10 %

Total
Procurement of materials and
technical services

Vehicle and transport
services

50 080

49 394

42 367

44 001

46 622

1%

Material and facilities
services

56 786

52 596

57 083

48 977

38 905

8%

Office supplies

64 828

66 183

63 286

52 249

60 047

-2 %

Energy supply

134 898 153 338 173 572

65 669

47 959

-12 %

Total

306 592 321 511 336 308 210 896 193 533

-5 %

694 990 686 976 675 558 553 345 534 194

1%

Total

Development of central procurements
EUR thousand

Framework agreements, top 15
2

EUR thousand

2013

2012

Share

Growth

Electricity

90 879

103 733

13 %

-12 %

Occupational health care services

65 923

63 909

9%

3%

Computers and peripherals

47 982

45 852

7%

5%

Fuel

36 292

39 034

5%

-7 %

Scheduled flights

32 958

31 595

5%

4%

Equipment leasing services

31 797

25 749

5%

23 %

Technical ICT consultancy

31 682

26 321

5%

20 %

Vehicles and economic driving training

28 814

27 114

4%

6%

Distribution channels for Microsoft access rights

25 723

24 501

4%

5%

Facility user services

23 960

20 334

3%

18 %

Office furniture

22 825

24 125

3%

-5 %

Domestic accommodation and conference services

22 740

22 378

3%

2%

Office and ICT-supplies

17 917

17 017

3%

5%

Voice solutions

17 662

16 582

3%

7%

Train travel services

12 693

10 751

2%

18 %

Other total

185 142

187 982

27 %

-2 %

Total

694 990

686 976

100 %

1%
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Central procurements by branch of administration
EUR thousand

2013

2012

Share

Growth

107 803

109 650

16 %

-2 %

Ministry of Education and Culture

98 160

101 561

14 %

-3 %

Ministry of Finance

89 356

80 528

13 %

11 %

Ministry of Employment and the Economy

84 609

76 259

12 %

11 %

Ministry of the Interior

69 324

74 033

10 %

-6 %

Ministry of Transport and Communications

56 654

53 649

8%

6%

Ministry of Justice

45 014

41 171

6%

9%

Finnish Government

42 274

46 899

6%

-10 %

Ministry of Social Affairs and Health

39 874

39 689

6%

0%

Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry

27 915

26 393

4%

6%

Ministry of Foreign Affairs

13 652

10 665

2%

28 %

Parliament of Finland

12 080

11 821

2%

2%

Ministry of the Environment

4 727

6 613

1%

-29 %

Agencies of the European Union

1 706

2 534

0%

-33 %

Office of the President of the Republic of Finland

1 404

1 871

0%

-25 %

436

3 639

0%

-88 %

694 990

686 976

100 %

1%

Ministry of Defence

Unallocated to any branch of the public administration
Total

Cost development
EUR thousand
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Operations of the central procurement unit
Hansel Ltd is a central procurement unit of the Finnish Government. The objective of Hansel Ltd’s operations is to
generate savings for the Finnish Government, by putting framework agreements for goods and services out to
tender. The tasks and roles of the central procurement unit are defined in the Act on Public Contracts, the Act on a
limited liability company called Hansel Oy, and in the State Procurement Strategy. Hansel’s customers consist of
ministries, their subordinate departments and other government agencies.
Hansel’s customers have the opportunity to make acquisitions without separate tendering processes by joining the
framework agreements administered by Hansel. Central procurement implemented under the framework
agreements generates considerable savings for the Finnish Government, through both procurement process costs
and pricing. Besides framework agreements, Hansel offers its customers consulting on the tender process and
other legal services related to procurement.
Through responsibly run operations, Hansel promotes high quality procurement and the equal, non-discriminatory
treatment of suppliers in the tendering process. The Public Procurement Act specifies that Hansel's objective is to
promote open competition and to organise tendering processes in a way that fosters efficient market operations.
Hansel is a non-profit limited company fully owned by the State of Finland, and operates under the steering of the
Ministry of Finance. The company’s operations are mainly funded by service fees, based on realised procurement
and collected from suppliers. Currently, the maximum service fee that may be charged is 1.5 per cent of contract
value, while the average service fee in 2013 was 1.19 per cent (1.21 in 2012).
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Financial status and key figures
In 2013, the volume of central procurement implemented under Hansel’s framework agreements continued to grow,
reaching €695 million (€687 million in 2012). This represented a growth of €8 million, or 1.2 per cent, over the
previous year.
In monetary terms, the growth was most significant in the sectors of financial management, IT services, travel
management, and material and facility administration procurement. The sectors that fell compared to the previous
year were energy, IT equipment, and office procurement. In the energy sector, figures are greatly affected by
electricity prices and weather conditions.
Net sales in 2013 totalled €8.7 million (€8.5 million in 2012). Net sales consisted of €8.3 million in service fees for
framework agreement sales (€8.3 million in 2012), €368,000 in income from tendering-related consulting
(€173,000), and €58,000 in other income (€16,000).
The financial position of the company is strong. Profit in the 2013 accounting period came to €195,000 (€602,000
in 2012). On 31 December 2013, the balance sheet total stood at €17.1 million, and liquid assets at €12.3 million.

Key financial figures
2013
Central procurements, EUR thousand
Net sales, EUR thousand

2012

2011

2010

2009

694 990 686 976 675 558 553 345 534 194
8 679

8 468

8 263

8 059

7 842

Profit, EUR thousand

173

589

918

1 327

995

and its share of net sales, %

2,0

7,0

11,1

16,5

12,7

Profit for the financial period, EUR thousand

195

602

850

1 210

1 263

Balance sheet total, EUR thousand

17 073

16 677

17 494

15 182

18 960

Equity capital, EUR thousand

15 048

14 853

14 251

13 401

16 618

88,1

89,1

87,5

88,3

90,1

73

71

66

57

57

Equity ratio, %
Personnel at the end of the financial period (FTE)**
'* As the reserve fund was returned to the owner, equity capital decreased by € 4,427,000 in
2010.
** Since 2010, reported full-time equivalent (FTE).
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Framework agreements as services
In 2013, Hansel organised the competitive tendering process for 20 framework agreements (16 in 2012).
Subcategories included, the total number of competitive tendering processes was 77 (48). At the year-end, Hansel
had a total of 74 (70) framework agreements and a total of 164 competitive tenders including subcategories. Also at
the end of the year, Hansel had 378 (350) contract suppliers.
For the third consecutive time, Hansel’s largest framework agreement was for Electricity, which reached a
procurement volume of €91 million (€104 million). The second-largest framework agreement was for Occupational
Health Care Services, with a procurement volume of €66 million (€64 million), and the third was Computers and
Peripherals at €48 million (€46 million).
Measured in euros, the main users of Hansel’s framework agreements were the administrative sectors of the
Ministry of Defence, the Ministry of Education and Culture, the Ministry of Finance, the Ministry of Employment
and the Economy, and the Ministry of the Interior. Utilisation of framework agreements is mainly promoted through
marketing communications. Besides face-to-face services, customers are offered diverse electronic services.
Each year, Hansel organises customer and supplier events with the aim of promoting sales and exchanging
experiences on framework agreements.
The structure of the government’s Electricity framework agreement was modified in 2013 in conjunction with the
tendering process. In the new model, the clearing account for energy derivatives trading is in Nasdaq OMX
Stockholm Ab under Hansel’s name. Hansel has a maximum on-demand bank guarantee of €150 million for use in
hedging electricity purchase prices at Nasdaq, of which €65 million was still available on the balance sheet date. On
31 December 2013, Hansel had used €53,389,679.00 of this guarantee, which corresponded to the guarantees
given to Nasdaq on the balance sheet date.
The collateral provided by Hansel against the bank guarantee from Nordea is a directly enforceable government
guarantee of a maximum of €150 million, granted by the government to Hansel for use in electricity price hedging
(decision VM/1805/02.04.06/2013). In its supplementary budget (1/2013, HE 52/2013 vp), the Parliament gave the
government permission to grant Hansel a directly enforceable government guarantee of a maximum of €150 million,
without demanding counterguarantees, according to limits set by the government and terms determined by the
Ministry of Finance, for use in counterguaranteeing the bank guarantee needed for carrying out price hedging for
electricity procured through joint procurement procedures between 2013 and 2017.
Around €4 million of Hansel’s own assets are tied to energy derivatives trading. Of this, at the year-end,
€889,887.79 was deposited with Nasdaq in the form of various guarantees, while the other €3 million approximately
was placed as working capital in an offset account to the clearing account for use in operational transactions. For
Hansel, electricity derivatives trading is a pass-through item that does not affect profits. The results of derivatives
trading are charged or repaid to customers as they are. The government’s electricity price hedging policy is set by
the Ministry of Finance, based on a proposal by the steering group for government electricity procurement. A
portfolio manager chosen by Hansel through competitive tendering decides on individual hedges made in line with
the hedging policy. The hedges made according to the policy reach up to 2019.
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Review of events in 2013
In 2013 Hansel began applying a new strategy with the aim of fulfilling the vision for 2017, according to which
Hansel will be the engine of efficient procurement in the government sector. Hansel’s strategic objective is to
assume a stronger role in developing government procurement and to collaborate actively with government entities.
Additionally, Hansel wants to be a pioneer in responsible and innovative public procurement, to increase its offering
in tendering-related consultancy, and to implement electronic tendering tools. Additionally, in the strategy period
there will be a focus on cooperation with customers and suppliers, on contractual supervision and on developing
staff competence.
Several development initiatives aiming at increasing operational efficiency were launched in line with the new
strategy. The major initiative is related to finding a provider for the electronic tendering solution, and it is currently
under way. The electronic solution will first be adopted by Hansel internally, after which its use will be rolled out to
customers. Another project affecting many stakeholders is the modernisation of the electronic channels for
customer and supplier communications, which applies to all Hansel websites.
The organisation of Hansel’s tendering consulting business was streamlined, and sales and marketing activities
related to the business were initiated. During 2013, Hansel was involved in carrying out major customer-specific
tendering processes, most of which were related to acquisitions of various information systems. Some of the
largest processes that were carried out related to a prisoner telephone system for the Criminal Sanctions Agency,
and a recruitment system and terminal and user support services for the Government IT Shared Service Centre.
During the year Hansel participated in nearly fifty customer-specific tendering processes and over four hundred
simplified tendering processes within the framework agreements.
At the end of 2013, Hansel was involved in one tendering-related case handled in the Market Court, and four in the
Supreme Administrative Court. During the year the company received 16 decisions of the Market Court, in which
eight appeals were rejected, six were left without further action and one expired. One trial ended in a procurement
decision being revoked. Similarly, the Supreme Administrative Court gave one verdict rejecting an appeal and three
verdicts returning the case in question to the Market Court. The Market Court then rejected the returned appeals
with regard to the principal claim.
The Ministry of Finance, with the help of the State Procurement Advisory Board, made an extensive study of the
current state of the government’s procurement operations. Hansel took part in making the review, on the basis of
which the Ministry of Finance intends to develop procurement.
A representative of Hansel took part in the work of the State Procurement Advisory Board, which consists of
representatives from all state administration sectors and from the university sector. The duties of the Advisory
Board include overseeing the achievement of the savings targets set for government procurement operations, as
well as promoting the practical implementation of Group-level targets and objectives, and the dissemination of best
practices.

Key events after the close of the accounting period
Business operations remained essentially the same after the close of the accounting period.
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Risks and risk management
Effective contract management and competitive tendering for contracts is of key importance in terms of Hansel's
risk management. Hansel operates in strict compliance with procurement legislation and the company’s tendering
process, thus guaranteeing the high quality of its tendering services. The company has internal guidelines and a
quality assurance system for competitive tendering.
Each framework supplier’s financial, technical and professional ability to provide the procured products or services
is assessed during the tendering phase. Contract suppliers are monitored throughout the contract period. In
cooperation with a risk management expert, Hansel regularly conducts major risk identification projects, the results
of which are presented in more detail in the Corporate Responsibility Report.
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Personnel and organisation
On 31 December 2013, Hansel employed 73 people (71 on 31 December 2012 and 66 on 31 December 2011).
The average number of personnel employed by Hansel in 2013 was 71 (69 and 63). Women accounted for 56 per
cent of all personnel and 60 per cent of Executive Committee members. The average age of its employees was 43.
At the end of the accounting period, 98 per cent of all employees had permanent employment contracts (94 and
90).
Education-wise, 54 per cent of employees hold a Master’s degree, and 14 per cent a Bachelor’s degree or a
degree from a university of applied sciences. Twenty-two per cent of employees had completed secondary
education with no further qualifications, and 10 per cent had no vocational qualifications. The company's incentive
system covers all permanent employees.
In 2013, 12 new employees were hired, seven of them on fixed-term contracts. During the year, eleven employees
left the company. three resigned and the fixed-term contracts of eight employees ended.
Most employees took part in a competence evaluation during 2013. The evaluation demonstrated a good level of the
specific competence that is critical for the fulfilment of the strategy. However, competence related to electronic
tendering and responsibility is a challenge at most levels. The company will develop its internal training system
based on these outcomes. A 360-degree leadership evaluation was conducted at Hansel in 2013. Future
management training sessions will focus on the identified company-wide areas of development in leadership.
Hansel adheres to the guidelines on management and key employee rewards and incentives issued by the Cabinet
Committee on Economic Policy. At the beginning of 2013, the incentive system was revised to comply with the
statement of the Cabinet Committee on Economic Policy issued on 13 August 2012.

Sustainable development, environmental factors and the shadow economy
Within public procurement, themes related to corporate responsibility and the fight against the shadow economy
play an increasingly important role. In its activities, Hansel adheres to the principles of corporate responsibility, in
line with the Government policies.
Corporate responsibility reporting is integrated in the company’s annual reporting practices, covering in detail all
the measures related to responsibility.
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Forecast and targets for 2014
In 2014, Hansel will continue to execute its new strategy, according to which the company will take on more
responsibility for developing the government’s procurement operations. The number of joint procurement
procedures is expected to remain at the previous year’s level. Income from service fees is expected to fall due to a
reduction in the average service fee level. This is due to a decision to cut the service fees for certain framework
agreements. For customers, the lower service fee percentage translates into lower prices. The consultancy
business is expected to continue growing. Hansel’s financial position is expected to remain strong.
A new Public Procurement Directive was approved by the European Parliament in January 2014. The new directive
emphasises the importance of electronic procurement solutions. The Finnish Act on Public Contracts is undergoing
a reform based on the directive, and Hansel is closely involved in preparing the reform.
Active cooperation with state governance service centres will continue in 2014. The target of this cooperation is to
improve the cost-efficiency and quality of government procurement, and eliminate overlapping operations. Hansel
regularly collaborates with entities including the State Treasury, Senate Properties, the Finnish Government Shared
Services Centre for Finance and HR (Palkeet) and Haus. The Government ICT Centre Valtori, which started
operating on 1 January 2014, is a major new partner for Hansel.
Hansel follows the discussions on public procurement being held in the European Union and is a member of the
cooperation group of the key central procurement units of the European states. In addition to Hansel, members
include the following central procurement units: SKI from Denmark, Kammarkollegiet from Sweden, BBG from
Austria, Consip from Italy and ANCP from Portugal.
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Board of Directors’ proposal for the disposal of
profit
Profit for the financial period totalled €195,414.47. The Board of Directors proposes that no dividend be paid, and
that the profit for the financial period be recognised as equity capital, and entered into the accounts as profit for
previous financial periods.

Board of Directors and auditors
At the Annual General Meeting of Hansel Ltd on 9 April 2013, the following members of the Board of Directors were
elected:
Timo Laitinen, Director General, State Treasury, (Chair)
Selena Savo, Human Resources Manager, Ministry of Finance (Deputy Chair)
Arja-Leena Rinkineva, Director, City of Helsinki Office of Economic Development (member)
Tiina Lukkari, Executive Vice President, Purchases, Alko Inc. (member)
Panu Kilpinen, Customer Relationship Manager, Hansel Ltd (member, personnel representative)

The Board convened eight times during 2013.
Authorised Public Accounting Firm KPMG Oy Ab is the company auditor, with Authorised Public Accountant,
Chartered Public Finance Auditor Jorma Nurkkala as the Chief Auditor. Anssi Pihkala, LL.M., is Hansel’s managing
director.

12

Board of Directors

Timo Laitinen, b. 1958

Selena Savo, b. 1973

Tiina Lukkari, b. 1954

Master of Laws
Director General
State Treasury
Member of the board since
2012

Vice Chair
Master of Arts
Personnel Manager
Ministry of Finance
Member of the board since
2013

Master of Arts
Executive Vice President,
Purchases
Alko Inc.
Member of the board since
2010

Marja-Leena Rinkineva, b.
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Personnel

Category Manager Pontus Grönholm, Legal Counsel
Ansa Nikander, Category Manager Pia Degerholm,
Category Manager Tero Lehtisaari, Senior Specialist
Minna Isoherranen

Head of Unit Mervi Olkinuora, Senior Specialist Maare
Heinikoski, Customer Manager Marika Hilke, Sourcing
Consultant Kalle Hietaranta

Head of Unit Sami Seppälä, Customer Advisor Anne
Juslin, Marketing Manager Arja Muuri, Customer
Advisor Mia Lindroos

Specialist in Marketing Communications Kirsi Vierikko,
Category Manager Sari Ylipalo, Category Manager
Sasu Laitinen, Specialist in Marketing Communications
Saana Salonen

Category Manager Katja Nybom, Category Manager
Mika Saarinen, Sourcing Assistant Irmeli Kreander,
Category Manager Pasi Kuokkanen, Head of Unit OlliPekka Leskinen

Controller Heli Jokela, Senior Specialist Kari Hoikkala,
Assistant to Chief Executive Officer Tiina Pietiläinen,
Specialist Tero Dits
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Chief Accountant Petri Nousiainen, Chief Financial
Officer Kirsi Koivusaari, Cost Accountant Eila
Partanen, Customer Manager Panu Kilpinen

Legal Counsel Karolina Lehto, Chief Legal Counsel Eija
Kontuniemi, Statistic Administrator Merja Leppänen,
Sourcing Consultant Tommi Nurmi

Bookkeeper Lea Helppi, Customer Manager Kari
Sourcing Consultant Mirke Turunen, Legal Counsel
Eronen, Legal Counsel Minna Eskola, Communications Petri Muranen, Legal Counsel Jukka-Pekka Salmela,
Manager Thomas Sund
Sourcing Consultant Sanna-Kaisa Kaikkonen, Sourcing
Consultant Juho Luoma

Controller Anne Saarnio, Senior Specialist Lasse
Ahonen, Customer Manager Ritva Huusko, Senior
Specialist Anne Majalampi, Legal Counsel Liisa
Lehtomäki, IT Manager Mikko Saavalainen

Sourcing Consultant Juha Ståhl, Procurement
Assistant Sanna Huhtala, Customer Relations Director
Petri Kalavainen, Procurement Assistant Elina
Somero, Senior Specialist Jani Mäkinen, Legal
Counsel Outi Jousi
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Category Manager Timo Malmberg, Customer Manager Sourcing Consultant Petteri Pohto, Sourcing
Taina Maukonen, Senior Specialist Kari Mattsson,
Consultant Suvituulia Taponen, Development Manager
Legal Counsel Katja Mikkonen
Timo Rantanen, Senior Specialist Tuula Risikko

Chief Category Officer Susanna Närvänen, Chief
Senior Specialist Eero Korkeakoski, Senior Specialist
Executive Officer (CEO) Anssi Pihkala, Senior
Aino-Maija Lahtela, Sourcing Consultant Kristian
Specialist Milja Virtanen, ICT Specialist Niko Myllynen Hartikainen

Customer Manager Marjo Weckström, Legal Counsel
Jukka Hämäläinen, HR Manager Minna Hälvä, Head of
Tendering Unit Ilkka Sihvola

16

Cash flow statement
1 Jan–31 Dec 2013

1 Jan–31 Dec 2012

259 553,23

797 588,15

Depreciation according to plan

51 697,76

50 587,49

Financial income and expenses

-86 881,48

-208 187,84

224 369,51

639 987,80

-2 744 546,72

1 068 657,74

296 951,91

-1 384 979,45

-2 223 225,30

323 666,09

Interest and other financial expenses paid for operating activities

-11 013,20

-15 760,53

Interest received from operating activities

160 568,97

247 147,73

-160 488,46

-229 298,39

Cash flow before extraordinary items

-2 234 157,99

325 754,90

Cash flow from business operations (A)

-2 234 157,99

325 754,90

Investments in tangible and intangible assets (–)

-31 098,84

-16 525,87

Cash flow in investing activities (B)

-31 098,84

-16 525,87

0,00

0,00

Change in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) increase (+) / decrease (–)

-2 265 256,83

309 229,03

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period

14 614 217,47

14 304 988,44

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period

12 348 960,64

14 614 217,47

-2 265 256,83

309 229,03

3 309 149,59

12 912 890,54

Cash flow from business operations:
Profit (loss) before extraordinary items (+/-)
Adjustments to operating profit (+/–):

Operating cash flow before change in working capital
Change in working capital:
Increase/decrease in interest-free short-term receivables
Increase/decrease in interest-free short-term liabilities
Cash flow from operating activities before financial items and taxes

Direct taxes paid (-)

Cash flow from investment:

Cash flow from financing activities:
Cash flow from financing activities (C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period include time deposits
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Profit and loss statement
1 Jan - 31 Dec 2013

1 Jan - 31 Dec 2012

8 678 709,08

8 467 814,11

1 602,00

44 811,86

-5 948 775,63

-5 414 008,05

-51 697,76

-50 587,49

-2 507 165,94

-2 458 630,12

172 671,75

589 400,31

86 881,48

208 187,84

Profit (loss) before extraordinary items

259 553,23

797 588,15

Profit (loss) before appropriations and taxes

259 553,23

797 588,15

Income taxes

-64 138,76

-195 639,83

Profit (loss) for the financial period

195 414,47

601 948,32

Net sales
Other income from business operations
Personnel expenses
Depreciation and value adjustment
Other operating expenses
Operating profit (loss)
Financial income and expenses
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Balance sheet
ASSETS

31 Dec 2013

31 Dec 2012

46 672,97

59 155,57

46 672,97

59 155,57

55 183,65

63 299,97

55 183,65

63 299,97

101 856,62

122 455,54

889 887,79

0,00

889 887,79

0,00

3 662 808,93

1 771 930,70

Other receivables

17 309,85

10 047,83

Prepayments and accrued income

52 111,77

158 267,38

3 732 230,55

1 940 245,91

1 977 245,20

0,00

1 977 245,20

0,00

Cash and cash equivalents

10 371 715,44

14 614 217,47

Current assets, total

16 971 078,98

16 554 463,38

ASSETS, TOTAL

17 072 935,60

16 676 918,92

31 Dec 2013

31 Dec 2012

12 500 000,00

12 500 000,00

2 352 945,42

1 750 997,10

195 414,47

601 948,32

15 048 359,89

14 852 945,42

Accounts payable

217 094,56

143 455,75

Other liabilities

460 496,09

468 046,83

1 346 985,06

1 212 470,92

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Intangible rights

Tangible assets
Machinery and equipment

Non-current assets, total
Current assets
Long-term receivables
Other receivables

Short-term receivables
Accounts receivable

Investments
Other shares and similar rights of ownership

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital
Retained earnings
Profit (loss) for the financial period
Equity, total
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accruals and deferred income
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Liabilities, total
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES, TOTAL

2 024 575,71

1 823 973,50

2 024 575,71

1 823 973,50

17 072 935,60

16 676 918,92
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Notes to the financial statements
1. Basis of preparation for the financial statements
1.1 Valuation principles
Fixed assets are entered in the balance sheet at cost less planned depreciation.
25 per cent reducing balance depreciation is applied to machinery and equipment.
Software licenses are amortised on a straight-line basis over five years.
Other long-term expenses are amortised on a straight-line basis over five years.

Foreign currency items
Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are recognised at the European Central Bank average
exchange rate of the closing date of the financial period.

1.2 Comparability of accounts
The accounting principles that were applied in 2012 have also been applied in 2013.

2. Notes to the profit and loss statement
2.1 Personnel expenses and average number of personnel

2013

2012

-4 542 946,91

-4 114 224,77

Fees and remuneration of the Managing Director and the Board of Directors

-292 023,85

-316 691,86

Pension expenses

-885 687,39

-768 262,14

Other indirect personnel expenses

-228 117,48

-214 829,28

-5 948 775,63

-5 414 008,05

74 476,92

80 335,36

At the end of the financial period

73

71

Average during the financial period

71

69

-33 371,43

-29 193,36

Machinery and equipment

-18 326,33

-21 394,13

Depreciation during the financial period, total

-51 697,76

-50 587,49

-1 110 467,76

-1 032 573,21

Facility expenses

-634 965,19

-616 769,71

Telephone, IT and office expenses

-459 886,81

-434 078,78

Salaries

Personnel expenses, total
Total monetary value of fringe benefits
Number of employees

2.2 Depreciation
Planned depreciation during the financial period
Intangible assets
Software licenses
Tangible assets

2.3 Other operating expenses
Administrative expenses
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Marketing expenses

-90 916,31

-95 697,17

Travel expenses

-63 246,97

-90 815,95

Representation expenses

-4 475,23

-1 933,57

Other operating expenses

-143 207,67

-186 761,73

-2 507 165,94

-2 458 630,12

94 935,55

223 948,37

38,75

0,00

2 920,38

0,00

97 894,68

223 948,37

-165,99

-35,82

Exchange rate losses

-5,64

-157,19

Guarantee premiums

-10 652,04

-15 567,52

-189,53

0,00

-11 013,20

-15 760,53

Audit fees

-29 831,62

-26 231,83

Other fees

-15 738,00

-11 438,57

Auditors' fees, total

-45 569,62

-37 670,40

2013

2012

366 521,38

354 584,93

20 888,83

11 936,45

0,00

0,00

387 410,21

366 521,38

-307 365,81

-278 172,45

-33 371,43

-29 193,36

-340 737,24

-307 365,81

46 672,97

59 155,57

Other operating expenses, total

2.4 Financial income and expenses
Financial income
Interest income
Exchange rate gains
Other income from securities
Financial income, total

Financial expenses
Interest expenses

Other expenses from investments
Financial expenses, total

2.5 Auditors' fees

3. Notes to assets of the balance sheet
3.1 Changes in non-current assets
Intangible assets
Acquisition cost 1.1.
Procured during financial period
Sold during financial period
Acquisition cost 31.12.
Accumulated depreciation 1.1.
Depreciation during the financial period
Accumulated depreciation 31.12.
Balance sheet value 31.12.
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Tangible assets
Acquisition cost 1.1.

723 699,17

719 109,75

10 210,01

4 589,42

0,00

0,00

733 909,18

723 699,17

-660 399,20

-639 005,07

-18 326,33

-21 394,13

-678 725,53

-660 399,20

55 183,65

63 299,97

Guarantee deposits

889 887,79

0,00

Long-term receivables, total

889 887,79

0,00

Travel advances

17 309,85

10 047,83

Other receivables, total

17 309,85

10 047,83

157,75

62 857,26

51 954,02

75 604,64

0,00

19 805,48

52 111,77

158 267,38

Book-value

Book-value

Fund units

1 977 245,20

0,00

Investments, total

1 977 245,20

0,00

2013

2012

Share capital 1.1.

12 500 000,00

12 500 000,00

Share capital 31.12.

12 500 000,00

12 500 000,00

Procured during financial period
Sold during financial period
Acquisition cost 31.12.
Accumulated depreciation 1.1.
Depreciation during the financial period
Accumulated depreciation 31.12.
Balance sheet value 31.12.
The company does not have a depreciation difference.

3.2 Long-term receivables
Other receivables

3.3 Other receivables

3.4 Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest, Bank account for December
Deferred expense
Pension insurance payment receivables
Prepayments and accrued income, total

3.5 Investments
Other shares and similar rights of ownership

4. Notes to equity and liabilities of the balance sheet
4.1 Equity
Restricted equity
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Restricted equity, total

12 500 000,00

12 500 000,00

Retained earnings 1.1.

2 352 945,42

1 750 997,10

Retained earnings 31.12.

2 352 945,42

1 750 997,10

195 414,47

601 948,32

2 548 359,89

2 352 945,42

15 048 359,89

14 852 945,42

Annual leave salaries and related social security payments

682 628,73

665 014,85

Salary liabilities and related social security payments

570 355,94

385 000,00

Accrued pension expense

9 972,00

0,00

Mandatory employer insurance payments

5 718,13

1 785,35

78 310,26

160 670,72

1 346 985,06

1 212 470,92

661 968,60

705 538,20

2 852 512,59

0,00

53 389 679,00

0,00

889 887,79

0,00

Leasing liabilities, less than one year

67 220,81

97 316,66

Leasing liabilities, more than one year

64 734,02

28 322,84

57 926 002,81

831 177,70

Non-restricted equity

Profit/loss for the financial period
Non-restricted equity, total
Equity, total 31.12.

4.2 Current liabilities
Accruals and deferred income

Other accrued expense
Accruals and deferred income, total

5. Notes on collateral and contingent liabilities
5.1 Commitments
Other own commitments
Rental liabilities, less than one year
Rental liabilities, more than one year
On-demand bank guarantee to Nasdaq OMX Stockholm Ab
Guarantee deposits to Nasdaq OMX Stockholm Ab

Commitments, total

The structure of the government’s Electricity framework agreement was modified in 2013 in conjunction with the
new framework agreement. In the new model, the clearing account for energy derivatives trading is in Nasdaq OMX
Stockholm Ab under Hansel’s name. To open this account, Hansel had to make guarantee deposits to Nasdaq
(totalling €889,887.79 on 31 December). The deposits are verified every three months by Nasdaq.
Hansel has a maximum on-demand bank guarantee of €150 million from Nordea Bank Finland Plc, for use in
hedging electricity purchase prices, of which €65 million was still available on the balance sheet date. On 31
December 2013, Hansel had used €53,389,679.00 of this guarantee, which corresponded to the guarantees given
to Nasdaq on the balance sheet date. The collateral provided by Hansel against the bank guarantee from Nordea is
a directly enforceable government guarantee of a maximum of €150 million, granted by the government to Hansel
for use in electricity price hedging (decision VM/1805/02.04.06/2013).
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For Hansel, electricity derivatives trading is a pass-through item that does not affect profits. The results of
derivatives trading are charged or repaid to customers as they come. The government’s electricity price hedging
policy is set by the Ministry of Finance, based on a proposal by the steering group for government electricity
procurement. A portfolio manager chosen by Hansel through competitive tendering decides on the content and
timing of individual hedges made in line with the hedging policy. The hedges made according to the policy reach up
to 2019.

5.2 Pending legal proceedings
At the end of 2013, Hansel was involved in one tendering-related case handled in the Market Court, and four in the
Supreme Administrative Court. During the year the company received 16 decisions ofthe Market Court, in which
eight appeals were rejected, six were left without further action and one expired. One trial ended in a procurement
decision being revoked. Similarly, the Supreme Administrative Court gave one verdict rejecting an appeal and three
verdicts returning the case in question to the Market Court. The Market Court then rejected the returned appeals
with regard to the principal claim.
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Signatures to the financial statements and
auditor's confirmation
Helsinki March 13th, 2014
Timo Laitinen, Chair
Selena Saco, Vice Chair
Tiina Lukkari
Marja-Leena Rinkineva
Panu Kilpinen
Anssi Pihkala, Managing Director

Auditor's confirmation
A report on the audit has been issued today.
Helsinki March 13th, 2014
KPMG Oy Ab
Authorised Public Accountants
Jorma Nurkkala
APA, CPFA
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Auditor's Report
To the Annual General Meeting of Hansel Oy
We have audited the accounting records, the financial statements, the report of the Board of Directors, and the
administration of Hansel Oy for the year ended 31 December, 2013. The financial statements comprise the balance
sheet, the income statement, the cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are responsible for the preparation of financial statements and
report of the Board of Directors that give a true and fair view in accordance with the laws and regulations governing
the preparation of the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors in Finland. The Board of
Directors is responsible for the appropriate arrangement of the control of the company’s accounts and finances,
and the Managing Director shall see to it that the accounts of the company are in compliance with the law and that
its financial affairs have been arranged in a reliable manner.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and on the report of the Board of Directors
based on our audit. The Auditing Act requires that we comply with the requirements of professional ethics. We
conducted our audit in accordance with good auditing practice in Finland. Good auditing practice requires that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and the report of
the Board of Directors are free from material misstatement, and whether the members of the Board of Directors or
the Managing Director are guilty of an act or negligence which may result in liability in damages towards the
company or have violated the Limited Liability Companies Act or the articles of association of the company.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial
statements and report of the Board of Directors that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors give a true and fair view of the
financial performance and financial position of the company in accordance with the laws and regulations governing
the preparation of the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors in Finland. The information in
the report of the Board of Directors is consistent with the information in the financial statements.

Other opinions
We support that the financial statements should be adopted. The proposal by the Board of Directors regarding the
use of the profit shown in the balance sheet is in compliance with the Limited Liability Companies Act. We support
that the Members of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director should be discharged from liability for the
financial period audited by us.
Helsinki, 13 March 2014
KPMG OY AB
Jorma Nurkkala
Authorized Public Accountant, CPFA
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Hansel in brief
Hansel is the central procurement unit of the Finnish government. It organises competitive tendering processes and
maintains framework agreements for products and services for government procurement units. Besides framework
agreements, Hansel offers consulting on tendering-related matters to its customers.
The company’s aim is to create savings for the State of Finland thanks to centralised procurement. Hansel’s
customers consist of ministries, their subordinate bureaux and other government agencies. The company’s
premises are in the Helsinki main post office building. Hansel has no international operations.
The purpose of Hansel’s operations is to simplify the complex. In addition to generating significant savings,
centralisation allows for better observance of sustainable development matters.
What Hansel offers its customers is security and ease. With years of experience in conducting demanding
tendering processes, Hansel’s experts have solid competence in responsible procurement. Businesses are
interested in the large volumes involved in government procurement, and this provides a good channel for Hansel to
influence the operating methods of companies that want to take part in the tenders. By demanding sustainable
practices, Hansel can encourage suppliers to tighten their principles and increase the responsibility of their
operations.
Hansel presents the results of its efforts in an annual Corporate Responsibility Report. The previous report was
published on 9 April 2013. Reporting is based on a materiality matrix, in which Hansel’s responsibility aspects are
ranked from the perspectives of stakeholders and the company’s operations. This allows Hansel to focus on
reporting the most important themes within corporate responsibility.
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Structure of the Corporate Responsibility Report
The Corporate Responsibility Report presents data related to 2013. It describes the company’s organisation and
operations, and presents the main results related to corporate social responsibility (CSR) achieved during the
review period.

The overall responsibility picture related to Hansel is illustrated by CSR-related megatrends, the company’s
strategy, co-operation with stakeholders and the responsibility materiality matrix. The section also describes
company’s administrative practices and gives a risk analysis.
The CSR aspects related to Hansel are approached from two directions in the report: firstly the CSR efforts
concerning the company’s contract suppliers and customers, and secondly CSR in Hansel’s own operations. The
framework agreements that have been granted an environmental label are listed in a separate table.

The structure of the report is based on the internationally approved Global Reporting Initiative GRI 4 guidelines
(Core). These guidelines were updated in 2013. As required by the GRI guidelines, the report includes a table
presenting the main content of the report, as well as guidance on where the information can be found. If
information is not available, this is mentioned in the table alongside an explanation for the omission. Some elements
of the information are included in the financial statements.
Hansel publishes its Corporate Responsibility Report in Finnish, Swedish and English at www.hansel.fi. The report
was verified by KPMG and is now for the first time published only in an online format.
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Board of Directors, from left to right Selena Savo, Marja-Leena Rinkineva, Panu Kilpinen, Timo Laitinen and Tiina
Lukkari

Administrative bodies
The members of the Hansel Board of Directors are elected by the Annual General Meeting. The Board is chaired
by Timo Laitinen, Director General of the State Treasury. The Board of Directors consists of five members,
including one personnel representative. Members of the Board of Directors cannot simultaneously be members of
the company’s operative management. The Board membership comprises three women and two men. Decisionmaking at Hansel conforms to the Finnish Limited Liability Companies Act and Hansel’s articles of association.
In connection with the strategic steering of the company, the Board monitors corporate responsibility management.
The Board reviews a draft version of the corporate responsibility report and makes comments. The Board has not
appointed any members who have the task of specialising in corporate responsibility, nor are the Board’s fees tied
to the results of CSR activities.
Hansel’s Executive Committee is nominated by the Board of Directors on the basis of a proposal by the Managing
Director. The Executive Committee comprises five members, including the Managing Director (three women and
two men).
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Organisational structure
The Framework Agreements Department, responsible for framework agreement management, is divided into three
procurement divisions: ICT procurement, Procurement of administrative services, and Material and technical
service procurement. Employees in this department include specialists in various sectors and competitive tendering
consultants.

The organisation of Hansel

The Account and Stakeholder Management Department is responsible for sales promotion, marketing
communications, and customer service. The Legal and Competitive Tendering Department is responsible for
competitive tendering processes and for the legal and contractual accuracy of the framework agreements. It also
offers tendering-related consulting to customers. Hansel also has a support team offering assistance to customers
in completing simplified tendering processes.
The tasks of the Financial and Administrative Department consist of financial administration, communications, and
HR. This department is responsible for the company’s management and external accounting and for corporate
responsibility reporting. The Communications team is responsible for the company’s internal and external
communications, while HR takes care of resourcing and competence development. IT Management is responsible
for the maintenance and development of IT systems.
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Trends affecting operations
During 2013, the Corporate Responsibility team defined the trends that affect Hansel’s operations. This involved
considering global megatrends and identifying those which particularly apply to Hansel.
The main megatrends affecting Hansel concern the development of the global economy, sustainable consumption
and changes in consumer status. The latter refers particularly to the strengthening role of the consumer, which
means that companies must offer their customers solutions which are easy to use and function properly.
Additionally, there are various technology-related trends influencing operations.
Once the megatrends had been identified, the focus moved to those which affect Hansel’s operations on a practical
level.

Megatrends
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Strategy and vision
Hansel’s vision is to be the engine of efficient procurement in the government sector. The company’s strategic
objective is to assume a stronger role in developing government procurement and to collaborate actively with
government entities. Additionally, Hansel wants to be a pioneer in responsible and innovative public procurement, to
increase its offering in tendering-related consultancy, and to implement electronic tendering tools. In the strategy
period there will be a focus on co-operation with customers and suppliers, on contractual supervision and on
developing staff competence.

Vision for 2017: Engine of efficient procurement in the government sector

CSR aspects are extensively accounted for in Hansel’s strategy. Hansel promotes responsibility particularly through
the framework agreements, by setting certain CSR-related requirements for tenders.
With regard to Hansel’s own operations, the main aspects of CSR are reducing environmental impacts, proper
financial administration, efficient use of resources, ensuring the occupational well-being of personnel, and
improving customer and supplier satisfaction.
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Materiality assessment
Corporate responsibility efforts at Hansel are based on a materiality assessment. The main CSR aspects of
Hansel’s operations are presented in the matrix below, which was updated by the Corporate Responsibility team in
2013.
There are several elements affecting the content of the matrix. The assessment took into account the company’s
values, trends in the operating environment, and the company’s strategic objectives and related actions. The
guidelines and decisions-in-principle related to Hansel given by the government also affect the content of the
matrix.
Other issues considered in the assessment included the outcomes of customer and supplier satisfaction surveys,
reports of the Corporate Responsibility team, feedback from customers and suppliers, and the results of personnel
job satisfaction surveys.

Hansel materiality matrix, 2013

The aspects of responsibility presented in the matrix are linked to the identified trends through colour-coding.
Besides megatrends affecting Hansel’s operations, the diagram includes issues related to Hansel as a responsible
employer. The materiality matrix and the trends that affect Hansel’s operations define the issues that are dealt with
in the sustainability report.
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CSR management
In recent years it has become increasingly important to account for CSR within procurement. Hansel’s CSR efforts
are managed as part of the company’s ordinary management system.
A central role is played by the Corporate Responsibility team, which convenes regularly and consists of experts
from various functions within the organisation. The team is chaired by the Director of Finance. The team is
currently composed of eight members.
The team develops, rolls out and provides information on CSR-related matters. Team members participate regularly
in events and training on aspects of corporate responsibility, organised by various stakeholders. Members of the
Corporate Responsibility team also hold presentations on Hansel’s CSR efforts at client events, for example.
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Code of ethics and values
Hansel has had a Code of Ethics in force since 2005. Each new employee studies the code as part of the
company’s orientation programme.
The purpose of the code is to ensure the equal treatment of all suppliers. Its instructions cover areas such as
attendance of events and giving and receiving of gifts. Hansel has a gift list that comprises information on all
received gifts with a value exceeding €15. Corporate hospitality and gifts to individuals comply with codes of
conduct for civil servants.
During tendering processes, Hansel’s employees do not, as a rule, attend events organised by companies taking
part in the process.
Instead of Christmas gifts, Hansel makes an annual donation of €850 to the Hospital for Children and Adolescents.
Hansel does not make other donations.

Hansels values
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Risks and risk management
The risks related to Hansel’s operations are analysed in connection with annual strategy updates. Every few years,
in addition to normal risk assessment, Hansel conducts a more comprehensive risk analysis, in co-operation with
risk management experts. In general, the key risks faced by Hansel are related to contracting activities – the
tendering process in particular.
The most recent risk assessment was completed in February 2013. As a result, 27 risks were identified and
assessed, with respect to the probability and magnitude of their consequences, should the risks be realised. On the
basis of this information, risks were placed in a so-called risk matrix. For each risk the causes and consequences
were discussed, as well as actions to reduce the risks. Risks include changes in legislation and legal practices,
major damages or refunds, and risks associated with the availability of workforce or coping at work.
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Stakeholders
Hansel’s key stakeholders are customers, suppliers, the company’s owner, and employees. The company also has
various other stakeholders, such as the legislative bodies responsible for procurement legislation, non-profit
organisations, industry organisations, and the media.
In early 2013, Hansel updated its stakeholder analysis, identifying and classifying the most important stakeholders
and assessing their interactive relationships with Hansel, as well as their expectations for the company.
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Stakeholder analysis
Stakeholder

Expectations and requirements

Impact on stakeholders

Management and co-operation practices

Procurement
units

Procurement procedures that, in
addition to taking the customers’
needs into account, offer good
terms, reasonable pricing, highquality service, ease of use, and
proven compliance with
legislation; support for the
tendering processes of in-house
procurement

Reducing the procurement
expenses of state
administration procurement
organisations and the
effort related to
procurement;centralised
accountability for
sustainable choices in
state administration
procurement

Operations are based on a customer
relationship plan, drawn up annually,
wherein areas of focus and major customer
relationship development activities are
identified. Responsibility: Director, Customer
Relations and Customer Managers

Group service
providers

Expectations for Hansel to support
the operations of service centres
through its framework agreement
services and expertise in
procurement legislation and
tendering

Reducing the procurement
expenses of state
administration procurement
organisations and the
effort related to
procurement;centralised
accountability for
sustainable choices in
state administration
procurement

Group service providers are perceived to be
steering the procurement of state
administration in the service and product
categories they are responsible for. Hansel
Ltd aims to develop its solution offering to be
able to support centres’ operations more
efficiently. Responsibility: Director, Customer
Relations and Procurement Sector Heads

Profitable commercial activities
with state administration
organisations; professional
tendering processes coupled with
non-discriminatory and fair
treatment

Significant sales volumes
for the suppliers with
successful tenders; nondiscriminatory and fair
treatment of suppliers;
requirements that promote
sustainable choices

Supplier co-operation is conducted in line
with an action plan prepared annually.
Responsibility: Chief Category Officer,
Category Managers

Owner

A well-run, responsible company
that generates savings for state
procurement

Generation of savings in
the operation costs of the
state via improved
procurement profitability
and savings on
procurement
expenses;state
procurement operations
that are fully compliant with
legislation

Hansel aims to be active in expressing the
views of the central procurement unit on
state procurement development and savings
opportunities. Responsibility: CEO

Hansel
personnel

Secure and rewarding
employment;opportunities to
develop both individual skills and
the company

An employer with longThis involves HR programmes.
term, responsible
Responsibility: CFO, HR manager
operations, offering,
alongside financial
compensation, an
attractive work environment
and the opportunity to
influence projects that are
significant on the national
level

Customer
relationships

Supplier
relationships
Framework
suppliers

Internal
relationships

39

Relationships
to other
stakeholders
Legislative
bodies

Presenting the viewpoint of the
procurement unit in support of
legislative development

A skilled and professional
unit that can share
practical experiences of
public procurement and
related legislation

Hansel is active in making development
proposals, participates in working groups,
and organises information sessions.
Responsibility: CLO

Other state
administration

Presenting the perspective of the
procurement unit and central
procurement units

Varies, depending on the
stakeholder

Active participation in dialogue is
encouraged, and regular meetings are held
with partner management and key
personnel.

Industry
organisations

Dialogue supporting the
development of contract terms

Greater efficiency and
impact of operations: a
centralised and efficient
channel through which the
interest of the parties
Hansel represents can be
voiced in state
procurement

Co-operation is maintained through regular
meetings and representatives’ inclusion in
tendering processes. Responsibility:
Category Managers

Not-for-profit
organisations

Promotion of responsibility and
sustainable development

Greater efficiency and
impact of operations: a
centralised and efficient
channel for promoting
sustainable choices in
state administration
procurement

Establishing co-operation, sharing
information, andutilising the expertise of the
organisations in framework agreement
tendering processes are key. Responsibility:
corporate responsibility team

Media

Information and news items on
state administration procurement
and procurement operations

Greater efficiency of
operations: a professional
entity providing reliable,
centralised information on
state administration
procurement and
procurement operations

Media needs are responded to through
active services. Responsibility:
Communications Manager

Analysis of the major stakeholders with whom Hansel works regularly
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External working groups
Hansel’s expert representatives regularly take part in working groups that aim, for example, to develop national
procurement activities, promoting responsibility in procurement, and improving data security in procurement.

Key working groups in which Hansel was involved in 2013
Working group

Established by

Objective

Steering and cooperation teams of
Senate Properties and
Hansel

Ministry of Finance

To develop co-operation between Hansel and Senate Properties

Strategic steering group
for the workstation
solution

Ministry of Finance

To monitor and steer the development of the government’s shared
workstation solution

Working group for secure Working group
ICT procurement
established by Hansel

To support the planning and implementation of shared service and
solution procurement within the framework of corporate government
steering (areas of focus include ICT procurement and the special needs
of the defence and security cluster)

Procurement forum

LOGY

To influence the development of Finnish procurement expertise and
promote the competitiveness of forum members

Steering group for
government electricity
procurement

Ministry of Finance

To monitor government electricity procurement

State Procurement
Advisory Board

Ministry of Finance

To promote interaction between government procurement units and
oversee the fulfilment of the Government Procurement Strategy

Ecolabelling Board

Ministry of Employment
and the Economy and
Motiva Services Ltd

To promote the use of the Nordic and European ecolabels – the Nordic
Swan and the EU Flower – in Finland

Steering group of the
Finnish National Public
Procurement Policy for
Wood-based Products

Ministry of Employment
and the Economy

To steer policy work through a team of experts

Working group for
electronic procurement

Ministry of Finance

To coordinate Finnish projects for electronic procurement

Smart Procurement

Finnish Funding Agency
for Technology and
Innovation (Tekes)

To improve market access for products and services developed by
SME’s in particular, and to improve the productivity and effectiveness of
public services

Working group for
updating the Terms for
Public IT Procurement

Advisory Committee on
Information Management
in Public Administration
(JUHTA) / JHS unit

To update the General Terms of Public Procurement

JYSE development team

Ministry of Finance

To update the General Terms of Public Procurement

Steering group for
sustainable procurement
advice

Motiva

To promote sustainable procurement in society

VISO Project

Aalto University

To create visualisations of procurement contracts

Innovative Public
Procurement
Development Club

VTT Technical Research
Centre of Finland

To promote innovative public procurement in society

Steering group for the

Ministry of Employment

To prepare a comprehensive reform of public procurement legislation
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Act on Public Contracts
reform

and the Economy

Working group for the Act Ministry of Employment
on Public Contracts
and the Economy
reform

To prepare a comprehensive reform of public procurement legislation

VAHTI: Technology unit

To come up with the main aspects of information security, particularly
with regard to public procurement

Ministry of Finance

In addition to its involvement in the working groups, Hansel makes expert statements on government procurement
and its development.
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Case: European Union focus on innovation in
procurement
Hansel conducts stakeholder collaboration with its European sister organisations. Hansel is involved in the
Innobooster Light & Furniture (inLIFE) project funded by the European Commission. The project is coordinated by
the Austria joint procurement unit BBG, and the other partners are the Austrian Ministry of Finance, Airport Linz
and the Austrian Institute of Technology (AIT).
Innobooster InLIFE is an innovation-focused project. Its objective is to identify ways of using innovations in joint
procurement, especially office furniture procurement and lighting solutions. It is also aimed at finding out whether
joint procurement between several countries in the European Union is viable.
Innobooster InLife forms part of an extensive innovation initiative and review, whose other projects include
participants from the UK, France, Spain, Italy and Sweden, among others.
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Memberships in organisations and disclosures
Hansel was a member of the following organisations in 2013: Helsinki Chamber of Commerce, Finnish Association
of Purchasing and Logistics ry (LOGY), Service Sector Employers PALTA, the Information Society Development
Centre (TIEKE), the Finnish Information Processing Association (FIPA), the Finnish Business Travel Association,
the Finnish Association of Communications Professionals (ProCom), the Finnish IT Law Association, Henry ry, the
Institute of Internal Auditors Finland ry, UPI ry (workplace fitness organisation), FIDE Finland, Nooan Arkki Oy
(Green Office), Meeting Professionals International and Finnish Business & Society.
Anssi Pihkala, Hansel's Managing Director, is a member of the Board of Directors of the Mint of Finland and a
member of the advisory board of the Finnish Government Shared Services Centre for Finance and HR (Palkeet).
The Managing Director does not hold a significant number of shares in companies.
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Transparency and stakeholder communications
The principles of communication at Hansel are transparency, consistency and timeliness. Work to update Hansel’s
communications strategy began in late 2013. The CSR principles listed in the company’s overall strategy will be
taken into account in the update.
Through consistent communications, Hansel seeks to maintain a corporate image that emphasises expertise from
different angles. Hansel also strives to maintain and develop an interesting and attractive employer image.
Besides its traditional communication channels, Hansel is increasing its use of social media. Through Facebook
and Twitter, Hansel can disseminate information on its operations and gather real-time feedback from its
customers, suppliers, and other partners.
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Aspects of corporate responsibility
Hansel aims to be a pioneer of responsible procurement. The importance of corporate responsibility and
responsible procurement is emphasised, among other instances, in the decisions-in-principle and procurement
strategy of the government.
Framework agreements offer an effective way of deploying government decisions through procurement. The
volume of joint procurement procedures is significant: during 2013, the Finnish state acquired products and
services with a total value of around €695 million through framework agreements. Thanks to this large volume,
Hansel is able to influence the generation of new services and the development of more environmentally friendly
products. Hansel can have an impact on what is available on the market by incorporating CSR aspects in
framework agreements and setting criteria, for example, related to the environment.

Tendering processes organised by Hansel are carried out openly and fairly, in line with procurement legislation.
CSR elements are taken into account at the planning and implementation stages of the tendering process, as well
as during the contract period.
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CSR aspects in the procurement process
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Accomplishments in 2013
In 2013, Hansel continued to pursue efforts to combat the shadow economy. In the spring of 2013, the Executive
Committee approved a guideline entitled “Non-Observed Economic Activity and the Act on the Contractor’s
Obligations”. The guideline continues on from earlier efforts, in which a monitoring service Hansel uses for keeping
track of its suppliers’ financial and legal status was outsourced to an external organisation and automated. Hansel
continues to make regular inspections related to framework agreement sales reports on contract suppliers. The
inspections are made by an independent third party.

In the autumn of 2013, Hansel published the internal guideline “Consideration of Social Elements”. At around the
same time, the Ministry of Employment and the Economy published the guide “Socially Responsible Public
Procurement”. The guide encourages procurement units to formulate strategies for carrying out socially
responsible procurement by setting social targets for procurements, for example. Hansel collaborated with the
Ministry of Employment and the Economy on the guide.
Hansel’s Corporate Responsibility team carried out a social responsibility risk analysis of the company’s framework
agreements. The aim of the analysis is to identify product and service groups that may involve CSR issues.
Operating models to reduce these risks will be created based on the analysis; this work is ongoing.
The responsibility materiality matrix was updated in late 2013 by the Corporate Responsibility team. In conjunction
with this, the team worked on identifying CSR-related megatrends.
Hansel has published Corporate Responsibility Reports since 2009, and they have been externally verified since
2010. There have been continuous efforts to develop CSR reporting at Hansel, and this is the first time the report
complies with the new GRI4 guidelines, which were updated in 2013.

48

Customers and suppliers
Hansel’s aim is to offer its customers services and framework agreements that are easy to use and that already
incorporate CSR aspects.
All suppliers of goods and services who fulfil the minimum requirements set out in the call for tenders are allowed to
take part in the tendering processes organised by Hansel following the open procedure.
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Act on Public Contracts and responsibility issues

Section 2:2
"Contracting authorities shall endeavour to organise their procurement procedures as economically and systematically as
possible, in as appropriate combinations as possible, taking environmental considerations into account."
Section 14
Reserving public contracts for sheltered workshops
Section 45
Technical specifications referring to environmental characteristics, or environmental requirements
Sections 53 and 54
Criteria for exclusion
Section 49
"Contracting authorities may lay down special conditions relating to the performance of a contract which may, in particular, be
intended to favour environmental and social aspects, such as on-site vocational training, compliance with the provisions of the
International Labour Organisation (ILO) conventions, working conditions and employment terms or the recruitment of people with
disabilities, provided that the conditions are non-discriminatory and compatible with Community law and that they are indicated in
the contract notice or the invitation to tender."
Section 62:2
"...while assessing the economically most advantageous tender, the contracting authority may take account of economic and
qualitative criteria to meet the needs of the public concerned, and environmental requirements, provided that these criteria are
measurable and linked to the object of the contract."
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Tendering process at Hansel
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Environmental responsibility in framework
agreements
Hansel has included environmental aspects in its framework agreements for several years, with help from sample
criteria from parties such as Motiva and the European Commission.
The Corporate Responsibility team examines all new framework agreements to ensure that environmental aspects
are considered. If a framework agreement has included environmental aspects in relation to two or more criteria set
by Hansel, it is awarded Hansel’s own ecolabel. By the end of 2013, 48 of the 74 framework agreements that were
in force (65 per cent) took into account environmental aspects.
In some sectors, such as organisational and HR development services, and other similar framework agreements
involving specialist services, environmental aspects cannot always be taken into consideration due to the nature of
the procurement.

In Hansel's framework agreements, environmental aspects are taken into
consideration
1 in the definition of the procurement need, or
2 in the procurement requirement specifications, or
3 in the applicability requirements, or
4 as a criterion for comparison, or
5 in the agreement terms, or
6 through a combination of all of the above.

Central procurement with environmental aspects taken into account
Procurement sector

Category

Central
procurement
2013, M€

Environment
considered
2013, M€

Environment
considered
2013, %

Environment
considered
2012, %

Environment
considered
2011, %

ICT procurement

Data
communications

32

10

32

29

16

ICT equipment

80

73

92

91

88

Software

28

26

92

27

0

ICT services

32

0

1

0

0

172

110

64

55

48

Financial
management

51

44

87

93

93

Organisational
and HR
development

87

3

3

0

0

Travel and
conference
management

79

74

94

96

92

217

121

56

54

53

Total
Procurement of
administrative
services

Total

52

Procurement of
materials and
technical services

Total

Vehicle and
transport
services

50

48

97

94

97

Material and
facilities services

57

48

85

71

60

Office supplies

65

56

86

86

91

Energy supply

135

135

100

100

100

Total

307

287

94

92

91

695

518

75

72

71
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Case: Consideration of environmental aspects in
office procurements
Hansel offers its customers a number of framework agreements for procurement of office-related services and
equipment, such as computers, network printers, all-in-one printers, office supplies and furniture. Environmental
aspects are considered extensively in these agreements, and the products and services obtained through them fulfil
certain environmental criteria set out by Hansel. The joint procurement procedure provides an easy way of
increasing the number of environmentally friendly products in the government’s offices.
With regard to computers, Hansel’s demands include fulfilling the requirements of the Energy Star energy
efficiency requirements. Attention is paid to recycling and decommissioning, and each supplier is required to give
a price in the contract for picking up old equipment from customers for recycling, regardless of the make.
Network and all-in-one printers also come under the Energy Star energy efficiency requirements. All printer
suppliers were required to provide reports on their environmental management actions and to give information on
the power consumption of their devices in different states. Batteries included in the equipment may not contain
cadmium, mercury, lead or any compounds thereof, except for impurities which are technically unavoidable.
Suppliers are required to contribute to the reuse and recycling of the equipment they offer.
There are product-specific environmental requirements for office and ICT supplies. Suppliers must provide
environmental reports. The supplier is responsible for providing the customer with ink cartridges and recycling
boxes for batteries, and organising the appropriate recycling of the collected products. The supplier must also
make every effort to optimise transport routes and to minimise CO2 emissions during transport and refilling.
Environmental factors are highlighted in the Office Furniture framework agreement. All wood and wood-based
materials must derive from legally harvested timber, and at least 70% must come from sustainably managed forests.
There are separate environmental criteria for the plastic, glues, textiles and metal parts in furniture. The suppliers
must also offer a recycling service.
It is an objective of Hansel’s framework agreements to account for the recycling of discontinued products or
packaging materials whenever possible. Appropriate recycling prevents the discharge of harmful substances into
nature and reduces the environmental burden caused by the use of raw materials and non-renewable natural
resources.
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Framework agreements with Hansel's
environmental label
Environmental aspects are taken into consideration in:
1 The definition of the procurement need 2 The procurement requirement specifications
3 The applicability requirements 4 As a criterion for comparison 5 The agreement terms

ICT Procurement
Data communications
Video conferencing services 2010

1

2

Mobile phones 2012-2014

3

5

3

5

ICT equipment
End-to-end printing environment services

1

2

Computers and peripherals

2

Network equipment 2010

2

Data storage solutions 2011

2

Network printers and services 2012-2016

2

Multifunction machines and services 2012-2016

3

4

5

4

5
5

4

5

3

4

5

2

3

4

5

Servers 2013-2015

2

3

4

5

Electronics and audio-visual equipment 2013-2015

2

3

5

Software
Distribution channels for Microsoft access rights 2012-2016

1

3

1

3

ICT services
Machine halls and capacity services 2013-2019

4

5

4

5

Procurement of administrative services
Financial management
Leasing services 2013-2017
Payment solution 2013-2017

2
1

Leasing services for cars 2013-2017

3
3

2

3

Organisational and HR development
Occupational health care services 2013-2018

3

Consultancy services for management 2013-2017

3

5

Travel and conference management
Accommodation services in Brussels 2011
Train travel services 2011

4
1

5

Domestic accommodation and conference services 2012
Passenger shipping services 2012
Travel agency services 2012

5

4
2

5

3
3

5
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Scheduled flights 2013-2014

3

4

Procurement of materials and technical services
Vehicle and transport services
Work machines 2010

2

3

5

Chartered bus services 2010

2

3

5

Transportation services 2012

2

3

5

Car rental and minileasing services 2013-2017

2

3

5

Vehicles and trailers 2013-2017

2

3

5

2

3

Restaurant services 2011

2

3

5

Electricity and HVAC supplies 2011

2

3

5

Consumable logistics services for institutional kitchens 2011

2

3

5

Facility user services 2012

2

3

5

2

3

5

3

5

3

5

Vehicles and economic driving training 2013-2017

1

4

5

Material and facilities services

Food products 2012-2016

1

Gases 2013-2017
Security technology 2012-2016

2

Office supplies
Distribution services for domestic literature 2010

1

5

Distribution services for foreign literature 2010

1

5

Printing and output services 2010

2

3

Office and ICT supplies 2012-2016

2

3

Office furniture 2013-2017

2

3

Fuel purchases from service stations

2

3

Electricity 2013-2017

2

3

Lubricants 2011

2

3

Fuels 2013-2017

2

3

4

5
5

Energy supply

5
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Innovative procurement and cleantech
One of Hansel’s objectives is to provide stronger support to supplier innovation and to produce innovative service
concepts for customers’ use. Typically, innovative procurement methods seek to identify new ways of providing
services.

Hansel is involved in a project run by the Finnish Funding Agency for Technology and Innovation (Tekes) that aims
to promote the completion of innovative cleantech procurements. Another objective is to strengthen the market in
order to maintain competitiveness and generate innovative business in Finland. The multi-year project began in late
2013.
The project examines processes related to preparing public procurement processes, sharing experiences and
funding procedures, which can promote the creation and success of solutions that are more environmentally
friendly than usual.
The aim is to be able to show from the data which product groups and areas of procurement are most successful in
the application of an innovative approach, and which specifications of the procurement object and criteria support
the creation of innovative solutions. Additionally, suitable new procurement processes that facilitate innovative
procurement will be described and tested.
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Financial responsibility in framework agreements
Combating the shadow economy is one of the Finnish government's spearhead projects. This is related to financial
responsibility. The government’s actions in this respect focus on the grey market in labour-intensive sectors and on
a reform of the Act on the Contractor’s Obligations. The main labour-intensive sectors from Hansel’s point of view
include the hospitality industry, the transport industry, and the cleaning and maintenance industry.
Hansel strives to account for financial responsibility aspects as comprehensively as possible in its framework
agreements. In this regard, suppliers taking part in the tendering process are required to have fulfilled their social
obligations properly: in other words, they must have paid their taxes and social security contributions, and comply
with statutory demands related to environment, health and safety, working conditions and terms of employment.
In procurement that falls within the scope of the Act on the Contractor’s Obligations, it is additionally required that
selected contract suppliers provide reports on their tax payments and the collective labour agreements under which
they work, as well as proof of registration in the trade register, prepayment register, VAT register and employer
register.
Supervision of contract suppliers’ financial and legal status is done by an external organisation. Hansel is
immediately informed if a supplier’s financial position weakens or its legal structure changes.
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Savings through centralised procurement
The very purpose of Hansel’s operations – generating savings for the government – is responsible in itself. The
company’s mission is to increase the productivity of the government’s procurement functions, and thereby to save
taxpayers’ money.
The savings achieved through Hansel’s operations have been examined through research into the cost impact of
central public procurement, commissioned by the Ministry of Finance and conducted by the Helsinki School of
Economics (Karjalainen et al. 2008)1. This research concluded that, when compared to distributed procurement
operations, the use of a centralised operational model in procurement generates significant savings of
approximately 20–25 per cent.
Based on the model presented in the study and the potential calculations of Hansel’s framework agreements, the
savings achieved through central procurement are estimated to have reached €240 million in 2013.
Hansel has defined the potential maximum volumes for its existing framework agreements and assessed their
utilisation rates2. The utilisation rate can be used to estimate which customers or framework agreements, for
example, still have unused potential, allowing the company to focus its resources as efficiently as possible in its
effort to generate savings for the state.

Estimate of savings achieved through Hansel’s operations
2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

2006

centralised procurement, M€

1 177

1 014

1 036

854

904

850

distributed procurement, M€

1 584

1 365

1 395

1 149

1 217

1 144

Savings percentage (Karjalainen et al. 2008)

25,7

25,7

25,7

25,7

25,7

25,7

Procurement volumes under the centralised model, M€

695

687

676

553

534

281

59

68

65

65

59

33

Procurement volumes if distributed model had been applied

935

925

909

744

719

378

≈ estimated yearly savings, M€

240

238

234

191

185

97

Hansel's potential:

Utilisation rate, %

Through more efficient operations, Hansel has been able to decrease the service fees charged from contract
suppliers. Currently, the maximum service fee that can be charged is 1.5 per cent of contract value, while the
average service fee in 2013 was 1.19 per cent.
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Hansel operating model

1 This

research was conducted using Hansel’s central procurement figures for 2006. The research concluded
that the savings achieved in 2006 already amounted to approximately €95 million. The study suggested that
if all potential central procurement were conducted in a fully centralised manner, the savings could amount to
25.7%. As it was assumed that a 100% utilisation rate could not, realistically, be achieved, this figure was
viewed as a theoretical maximum value for savings through central procurement. The study estimated a
utilisation rate of 80% to be realistic.
2 More

information on calculations of potential and the utilisation rate is available in the section “Key figure
formulae and calculation principles”.
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Market functionality and SME's
Ensuring a healthy market and promoting competition are important features of financial responsibility. In its
competitive tendering processes, Hansel takes the operational prerequisites of SME’s into consideration. The
company keeps track of the percentage of SME’s of all contract suppliers. The degree to which framework
agreement sales are split between SME’s and large corporations is also monitored. The European Commission’s
definition of SME’s was used.3
Because Hansel’s customers often have large procurement volumes, it can sometimes be difficult for small
companies to respond to the orders. In public procurements, companies are allowed to team up, so that they are
able to produce the required volumes.
In 2013, 46 per cent of Hansel’s suppliers were SME’s. This figure includes all suppliers who have a direct
contractual relationship with Hansel; subcontractors are not accounted for. In 2012, the classification criteria for
associations and for municipality and city-owned companies were revised; these are now included in "Other".
Classification has similarly been revised for some companies that are part of international groups, if these
companies were previously classified as SME’s due to the small scale of operations in Finland.
SME’s accounted for 10.2 per cent of total central procurement in 2013. In practice this means that procurement
from SME’s under Hansel’s agreements exceeded €70 million

SME's as contract suppliers
2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

173

161

263

342

233

Percentage of SME's of all suppliers

46

46

64

71

64

Central procurement from SME's, M€

70,8

115,0

176,2

203,3

200,6

Share of central procurement from SME's, %

10,2

16,7

26,1

36,7

37,5

Amount of SME suppliers

The total procurement from SME’s through framework agreements has fallen in recent years. This is particularly
due to the Electricity framework agreement, which became the company’s largest agreement (calculated in euros)
in 2011, when the government decided to centralise its electricity acquisitions through Hansel. No power suppliers
are SME’s.
Regional aspects are taken into account in Hansel’s framework agreements. The framework agreement for
Occupational Health Care services is divided into 61 geographical areas, with the aim, among other things, of
supporting the availability of local social and health care services. Regional aspects were also incorporated in the
Domestic Accommodation and Conference Services framework agreement, which was divided into 70 regions in
order to respond to the customers’ accommodation needs in the best possible way. Regional aspects are taken into
account in about 10 per cent of the framework agreements.

3Number of personnel under 250, with maximum net sales of €50 million or maximum balance sheet total of €43

million. Companies must also fulfil the ‘independence criterion’, which means that no large companies own more than
25% of the SME in question.
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Case: Digitalisation of the procurement process
A new Public Procurement Directive was approved by the European Parliament in January 2014, requiring all
public procurements to be opened to tenders electronically after a transition period of around two years. Hansel is
preparing a solution for an electronic tendering system for use by the whole government. The electronic solution will
be adopted first by Hansel internally, after which its use will be rolled out to customers.
Digitisation of the procurement process offers many benefits for customers and suppliers alike. Firstly, it is
expected to increase efficiency by reducing the administrative burden and increasing transparency. Better
transparency may also reduce the number of disputes4.
The aim of Hansel’s electronic procurement solution is to boost government efficiency by digitising all the stages of
the procurement process, from the call for tenders to the final payment. With calls for tenders and bids being made
online, earlier data can be reused, which will make it significantly quicker to open and evaluate tenders and make
procurement decisions.
The electronic procurement solution supports the government’s procurement units in the tendering process. The
units will be able to make use of ready-made forms and formerly identified best practices to enhance their
procurement competence. Particularly in the case of processes with a large number of tenders, automatic opening
and verification of supplier suitability will significantly speed up the handling process.
Many studies have shown that SME’s in particular benefit from electronic procurement, due, among other things, to
quicker information provision, more extensive opportunities to enter the tendering process, and simplification of
processes. Generally speaking, the participation of SME’s in public procurement tendering has increased with the
adoption of electronic processes5.

4 Lombardy Central Purchasing Body has estimated that the adoption of electronic procurement had cut the duration of

procurement procedures by 26 per cent and the number of conflicts by 88 per cent. Communication from the
Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the
Committee of the Regions: “End-to-end e-procurement to modernise public administration”, 26 June 2013
5 Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social

Committee and the Committee of the Regions: “End-to-end e-procurement to modernise public administration”, 26
June 2013

62

Social responsibility in public procurement
The basic principles of public procurement are applied in the inclusion of social responsibility aspects. All criteria
must be fair and non-discriminatory, mindful of the principle of proportionality, and openly communicated. The
social elements must be related to the object of procurement, and be significant in terms of procurement
implementation.
In practice, social elements may be incorporated in the terms and conditions of the contract – e.g., by requiring
that the supplier commit to the key working-condition conventions of the International Labour Organization (ILO).
On a few occasions, such as in the competitive tendering process for the Computers and Servers framework
agreements, Hansel required tenderers to present a voluntary statement on their adherence to the ILO conventions.
Hansel has conducted a risk analysis on the social responsibility of its framework agreements. This involved placing
the agreements in a risk matrix whose variables were the value of the contract in euros and the size of the social
risk it entailed. This was intended to identify the most risky sectors and framework agreements from a social
responsibility point of view.
The analysis showed that the greatest social risk lies in the framework agreements made with specific international
goods suppliers and Finnish service providers. With regard to the international suppliers of goods, the high risk
was linked to labour-intensive production practices, a large number of subcontractors and long supply chains. The
level of social risk grows for example when goods are manufactured in countries where little attention is paid to
workers’ rights, and when raw materials are mostly sourced from outside Europe. With regard to Finnish service
providers, the risk factors were related to labour-intensive services, a large number of subcontractors and lowincome sectors.
Hansel has around ten framework agreements whose placement in the matrix indicated a high or very high social
risk. Development based on the risk analysis is under way at Hansel, with the aim of creating suitable models for
reducing the risks in the identified sectors.
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Case: Sustainability aspects in cleaning services
The government can procure cleaning and security services though the Facility User Services framework
agreement, whose tendering process took CSR aspects into account as comprehensively as possible, in
accordance with the government’s wishes.
The contract suppliers must comply with the reporting and other demands of the Act on the Contractor’s
Obligations. Information on these matters must always be provided to Hansel before the framework agreement can
be signed. The suppliers must also ensure that their contracts with employees match or exceed the terms and
conditions that are generally applied in collective labour agreements in the facility maintenance sector.
The suppliers must agree to pay attention to promoting employment and to examine methods for doing this in
collaboration with Hansel or the end client (the government body in question). The client using the framework
agreement has the right to set specific terms related to promoting employment on a case-by-case basis through
simplified tendering processes.
Besides financial and social aspects, the framework agreement accounts for environmental issues, seeking to
reduce energy and material consumption and detrimental impacts throughout the life cycle of the service. The
supplier must ensure that its cleaning detergents, equipment, tools, machines and methods are as environmentally
friendly as possible.
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Customer satisfaction
Hansel regularly monitors trends in customer and supplier satisfaction. Feedback is collected from customers and
suppliers through surveys conducted every eighteen months, in order to improve the company’s operations. The
latest satisfaction survey was carried out in January 2014 using an online questionnaire. The outcomes of the
survey will be examined by the Executive Committee and then used in planning improvements together with
personnel.
According to the customer satisfaction survey, Hansel has succeeded in developing its operations in a favourable
direction. The overall satisfaction rate of Hansel’s customers was 3.84 on a scale of 1–5. Customers appreciated
the professional competence of Hansel’s specialists, particularly in the competitive tendering process and
procurement legislation. High scores were also given for Hansel’s service mindset, reachability and corporate
communications. Meanwhile, knowledge of the object of procurement and of customer needs were identified as
areas in need of development.
A total of 502 customers replied to the customer survey, and responses were received from all branches of public
administration. The largest numbers of responses were received from the administrative branches of the Ministry of
Education and Culture, the Ministry of Employment and the Economy, and the Ministry of Finance.
Contract supplier satisfaction will be the subject of a survey in spring 2014.
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Data-secure solutions
In line with the decision-in-principle on the development of data security in the state administration, data security
issues form an integral part of management, expertise, risk management, and administrative development. In
principle, every organisation is responsible for data security within its own operations. At the government level,
responsibility for data security steering and development lies with the Ministry of Finance. Hansel’s framework
agreements take into consideration the government’s data security guidelines and requirements.
Key business-critical data security principles and requirements are set out in Hansel’s data security policy. Data
security obligations apply to all Hansel employees. Hansel’s data security manager is responsible for providing data
security related training and instructions, and for in-house communications.
At Hansel, data security means ensuring the confidentiality, integrity and accessibility of data. Data security is a
reflection of sound business practices and part of Hansel’s risk management. Maintaining a level of data security
that is appropriate and sufficient for Hansel’s business allows the use of modern and efficient business processes
and methods. Hansel is committed to upholding the basic data security level of the state administration (Government
decree on data security in state administration 681/2010). The audit conducted in 2012 showed that Hansel meets
all of the basic requirements for data security within the state administration.
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Responsibility in Hansel's own operations
Due to the nature of Hansel’s business, the environmental load caused by operations is minor. Environmental
impacts are primarily generated by travel, energy consumption in facilities, and office equipment.

Hansel has been a WWF Green Office since 2009, and as such takes corporate responsibility and sustainable
development into consideration in its operations.
Hansel keeps track of environmental key figures for the consumption of electricity and paper, travel and equipment
and furniture procurement. WWF’s Climate Calculator, which is a Green Office tool, has been utilised in the
calculations. Emission figures have not been adjusted in proportion to growth in business or personnel.

The environmental impact of Hansel's own operations

Direct impact, Hansel's own operations

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

CO2

CO2

CO2

CO2

CO2

thousands
of
kilograms
Paper consumption

thousands thousands thousands thousands
of
of
of
of
kilograms kilograms kilograms kilograms

0,75

0,78

0,97

1,03

0,88

42,43

46,93

35,04

45,60

41,68

Emissions corresponding to the mileage allowances paid out by
the company

0,32

0,52

0,36

0,56

0,42

Other traffic (taxis)

0,98

1,21

1,08

3,18

3,58

24,12

42,41

33,12

35,05

22,65

Marine traffic

3,41

0,00

1,03

0,46

0,08

Rail traffic

0,10

0,11

0,23

0,00

0,00

Electricity consumption **

12,97

11,19

9,88

Direct impact, total

85,08

103,15

81,71

85,88

69,29

Mobile phones

0,70

0,56

0,72

0,46

Laptop computers

0,17

0,86

1,54

9,75

Desktop computers

0,00

0,00

0,00

4,70

LCD displays

0,23

1,14

1,59

14,53

Multifunction equipment

0,00

0,00

1,89

0,41

Furniture

0,42

0,89

4,78

0,00

Road traffic according to fuel consumption *

Air traffic

Emissions caused by office equipment and furniture
procurement ***

67

Emissions caused by office equipment and furniture
procurement, total

Total

1,52

3,45

10,52

29,85

86,60

106,60

92,23

115,73

69,29

*) Calculation is based on the company-car fuel purhases
**) Since the beginning of 2011, 30 % of the electricity procured
is of renewable energy source, as required in line with the
Government's decision-in-principle.
***) Emissions related to office equipment procurement have
been monitored since 2010. Emissions are calculated on the
basis of consumtion over the full life cycle of the equipment.

Hansel’s employees have received environmental training, and the company's website and intranet regularly publish
environmental tips on various topics. Video conferencing is used to reduce the need for travel. Employees are
encouraged to use public transportation, with HSL commuter vouchers. The CO2 emissions limit for company cars
is 160 g/km.
Whenever possible and applicable, Hansel uses the framework agreements concluded after tendering processes in
its own procurement too. Hansel’s own marketing materials are mainly in electronic format.
In the case of the Green Office project, solutions generating a smaller environmental load were introduced in minor
office purchases. For example, waste sorting at Hansel's offices has been established in accordance with the
Green Office guidelines. In 2013, over half of the energy consumed by Hansel came from renewable sources. This
exceeds the objectives for renewable energy sources specified in a decision-in-principle of the government.
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Inspiring workplace for experts
Hansel’s strategic objective is to provide an encouraging and inspiring work community for experts. A responsible
HR policy is in place to create a good working environment for professional and motivated employees.
Hansel’s strategy has a strong focus on competence development, and the company has initiated a competence
development scheme based on the strategy. The competence assessments carried out in 2013 focused on the level
of competence in business-critical roles. Hansel is in the process of creating a company-wide training programme
based on the results of these assessments. Hansel will also focus on sharing competences and best practices
across units.
Of Hansel’s personnel, 68.4 per cent of employees have a master’s or bachelor’s degree, or a degree from a
university of applied sciences. A university-level background in business studies is the most typical, followed by an
education in law.

Education*
2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

54,4

53,4

47,2

39,7

38,6

1,3

2,8

5,7

Degree from a university of applied sciences, %

12,7

12,3

14,3

24,1

21,1

Secondary education degree + other degrees, %

21,5

21,9

21,4

25,9

29,8

No vocational qualification, %

10,1

9,6

11,4

10,3

10,5

4

5

5

5

6

789

1 064

952

1 304

2 166

Master's level degree, %
Bachelor's level degree, %**

Training days, per person per year
Training services purchased from third parties, € per person per year
*Presented based on existing employment relationships
**Previously included in degrees from universities of applied science

In 2013, persons in managerial positions had 4,2 external education days while others had 1,4 external education
days. The education days were divided equally between men and women, both groups had 1,8 education days.
On a case-by-case basis, Hansel supports participation in long-term education programmes outside the company,
with financial support and flexitime solutions that facilitate the combination of work and study. Over the last few
years, personnel satisfaction with the opportunities the company provides, for competence development through
training and learning at work, has remained high.
New employees undergo a job orientation programme lasting around two weeks, during which they learn about all
of the company’s main functions. The programme also goes through the Code of Ethics and other CSR-related
elements. Feedback from new employees is collected via a feedback discussion, held a few months after
employment has begun.
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Fringe benefits and performance-related pay
Employment benefits, available to all Hansel employees, include a company mobile phone, recreational vouchers,
employer-subsidised commuter vouchers, luncheon vouchers, and leisure accident insurance. A new fringe benefit
offered from 2013 onwards is a temporary carer to look after a sick child.
Hansel personnel also benefit from a wide range of occupational health services, including health care at general
practitioner level, on-call health care, and specialist consultations. Occupational health care operations focus on
preventive health care.
Hansel adheres to the guidelines on management and key employee rewards and incentives issued by the Cabinet
Committee on Economic Policy. Hansel’s Board of Directors sets annual incentive targets.
From the beginning of 2013, the incentive system has complied with the statement of the Cabinet Committee on
Economic Policy issued on 13 August 2012, which sets the maximum incentive at 15 per cent of the annual salary.
Members of the Executive Committee may receive a bonus equal to 30 per cent of the salary as compensation for
exceptional performance.
By decision of the Board of Directors, performance-related pay in 2013 was based on customer satisfaction and
personal performance.
The financial statement for 2013 includes an incentive reservation of €466,000, excluding social insurance
payments. Incentives will be paid out in April 2014. Temporary personnel are not covered by the incentive scheme,
although in other respects their benefits are identical to those of permanent employees.

Paid incentives (excluding social insurance payments)

Thousands of euros

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

319

307

266

455

435

Employees with permanent employment contracts who need a car for their work-related responsibilities are entitled
to a company car. Company-car tax is deducted from the total salary of the recipients of this benefit. Seven Hansel
employees had a company car at the end of 2013.
In 2007, a supplementary pension from an insurance company was taken out for the managing director. The
annual fees of this pension insurance come to €9,714 (including life insurance). The Managing Director’s
retirement age is 63 years.
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Job satisfaction, leadership and recreational
activities
A good and well-led working community can significantly contribute to employee job satisfaction, commitment and
inspiration. Fostering a great atmosphere at work is important to Hansel.
Hansel conducts a job satisfaction survey every 18 months in order to assess the well-being of the working
community. The job satisfaction level has been good in recent years. In the last measurement in late 2012, Hansel’s
occupational well-being received an average score of 3.7 on a scale of 1–5 (3.6 in 2011). The next survey will be
conducted in the spring of 2014.
Hansel pays attention to developing managerial work, and measures the outcomes of development efforts. A 360degree evaluation of leadership practices was conducted at Hansel in 2013, in which each manager carried out a
self-evaluation and was assessed by his/her direct subordinates, line manager and closest colleagues. The results
were analysed in individual training sessions, on the basis of which personal development plans were drawn up for
managers. Company-level management training will be organised to address general leadership issues.
Management quality is also assessed as part of the job satisfaction survey.
One way to encourage everyone to pull together is to organise shared activities and events for employees. Hansel
encourages all of its personnel to participate in the events organised by the company’s employee club. In 2013, the
employee club organised various sports and cultural events, a summer party and the traditional Christmas party.
Among other activities, Hansel has its own floorball and football teams taking part in amateur leagues.
Events organised by the personnel club have been very popular, and the club programme is planned and developed
in tune with employee wishes. The costs of these events are partially borne by the employer. The total budget for
recreation activities in 2013 was €36,000.
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Collective agreement and co-operation with
employee associations
Hansel’s collective labour agreement was negotiated with Service Sector Employers PALTA and the Federation of
Professional and Managerial Staff (YTN). It is valid until further notice.
PALTA is an employer organisation and member of the Confederation of Finnish Industries EK. The Federation of
Professional and Managerial Staff is a private-sector negotiation body of Akava, the Confederation of Unions for
Professional and Managerial Staff in Finland, of which the Hansel employee association is a member.
The labour agreement applies to all Hansel personnel, except for the managing director. As specified in the labour
agreement, personnel are represented by a workplace steward and his or her deputy, selected from amongst the
staff.
The interests of the personnel are also promoted by the personnel association (Hanselin ylemmät toimihenkilöt ry),
which is a member of YTN. Roughly one half of Hansel’s personnel are trade union members.
The collective agreement and guidelines for personnel are available on Hansel’s intranet.
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Personnel statistics
During 2013 Hansel recruited 12 new employees: seven with fixed-term and five with permanent contracts. The
fixed-term contracts were mostly made to cover family leave by permanent employees. Additionally, Hansel
employs students on an hourly basis to help during summer and at peak times.

Number of personnel
2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

Number of personnel a the end of the financial period (FTE)

73

71

66

57

57

Average number of personnel during the financial period (FTE)

71

69

63

58

57

Valid employment contracts on 31 December

79

78

77

69

67

Valid permanent contracts on 31 December

77

73

69

64

60

Valid fixed-term contracts on 31 December

2

5

8

5

7

Full-time fixed-term contracts on 31 December

1

2

4

2

3

Part-time fixed-term contracts on 31 December

1

3

4

3

4

78

75

73

66

63

4

5

7

8

6

Permanent employment contracts on 31 December, %

97,5

93,6

89,6

92,8

89,6

Fixed-term employment contracts on 31 December, %

2,5

6,4

10,4

7,2

10,4

Full-time employment contracts (fixed-term and permanent) on 31 December
Parental leave, on average

As required by law, Hansel has an equality plan, presenting measures to ensure equality and preventing
discrimination. The company monitors trends and differences in salaries and the representation of men and women
in the various types of jobs.
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Employees by gender

Years of service
2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

40 or more

5

3

3

2

2

30-39

4

6

6

5

5

20-29

0

0

0

2

3

10-19

6

1

1

1

0

4-9

33

33

34

23

22

1-3

24

23

18

25

22

6

9

11

8

9

78

75

73

66

63

Years of service

Less than a year
Total

74

Employees by age

Employee turnover
2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

12

12

14

9

11

7

3

5

2

3

11

10

6

5

5

Retirements

0

0

0

1

1

Termination of fixed-term contracts

8

3

2

1

1

Resignations

3

7

4

3

3

Average turnover rate, %

14,6

14,1

13,0

10,1

11,9

Exit rate, %

13,9

12,8

7,8

7,2

7,5

3,8

9,0

5,2

4,3

4,5

New employment relationships
of which fixed-term contracts
Terminated contracts

Exit rate, resigned personnel, %

An exit interview is conducted with all departing employees, with the objective of gaining feedback on the operations
of the work community and development ideas, for their further improvement. Feedback is handled by the Executive
Committee. No employment contracts were terminated at Hansel between 2008 and 2013.

Sick leave and accidents
2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

Number of accidents leading to sick leave annually

5

7

1

2

2

Number of accidents during working hours annually

2

1

-

-

-

75

Deaths

-

-

-

-

-

Sick leave, including care for sick child (days/FTE)

6,6

9,3

8,1

7,8

6,3

Sick leave, excluding care for sick child (days/FTE)

5,4

8,3

7,4

7,1

5,2

Short sick leave periods (1-3 days), excluding care for sick child (days/FTE)

2,3

2,6

2,6

2,1

2,1

Total sick leave, excluding care for sick child (FTE)

1,6

2,4

2,0

1,8

1,3

Sick leave rate, including care for sick child (%)

2,8

3,9

3,4

3,3

2,7

Sick leave rate, excluding care for sick child (%)

2,3

3,5

3,1

3,0

2,2

Healthcare expenses (€ per person per year)

596

669

486

433

454

Personnel recreation expenses (€ per person per year)

514

579

674

504

339
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GRI index
Hansel reports in accordance with the internationally approved Global Reporting Initiative GRI 4 guidelines (Core).
These guidelines were updated in 2013. As required by the GRI guidelines, the table below presents the main
content of the report, as well as links to the material in question. If information is not available, this is mentioned in
the table alongside an explanation for the omission. Some elements of the information are included in the financial
statements
General standard disclosures

Additional
information

External assurance

Stategy and analysis
G4-1

CEO’s review

•

Organisational profile
G4-3

Name of the organisation

•

G4-4

Primary brands, products and services

•

G4-5

Location of the organisation’s headquarters

•

G4-6

Number of countries where the organisation operates, and names of countries
where either the organisation has significant operations or that are specifically
relevant to the sustainability topics covered in the report

•

G4-7

Nature of ownership and legal form

•

G4-8

Market areas

•

G4-9

Scale of the organisation

•

G4-10 Total number of employees by employment contract, employment type, region
and gender

•

G4-11 Percentage of total employees covered by collective bargaining agreements

•

G4-12 Organisation’s supply chain

•

G4-13 Significant changes during the reporting period regarding the organisation’s
size, structure, ownership, or its supply chain

No changes

•

G4-14 Whether and how the precautionary approach or principle is addressed by the
organisation

•

G4-15 Externally developed economic, environmental and social charters, principles,
or other initiatives to which the organisation subscribes or which it endorses

•

G4-16 Memberships of associations and national or international advocacy
organisations

•

Identified material aspects and boundaries
G4-17 Entities included in the organisation’s consolidated financial statements

Hansel is not a group

•

G4-18 Process for defining the report content

•

G4-19 Material aspects

•

G4-20 List of entities or groups of entities within the organisation for which the
aspects are material

Concerns Hansel

G4-21 List of entities or groups of entities outside of the organisation for which the
aspects are material
G4-22 Effect of any restatements of information provided in previous reports, and the
reasons for such restatements

•
•

No changes

•
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G4-23 Significant changes from previous reporting periods in the scope and aspect
boundaries

No changes

•

Stakeholder engagement
G4-24 List of stakeholder groups engaged by the organisation

•

G4-25 Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders with whom to engage

•

G4-26 Organisation’s approach to stakeholder engagement

•

G4-27 Key topics and concerns that have been raised through stakeholder
engagement

•

Report profile
G4-28 Reporting period

•

G4-29 Date of most recent previous report

•

G4-30 Reporting cycle

•

G4-31 Contact point for questions regarding the report or its contents

•

G4-32 GRI content index

•

G4-33 Policy and current practice with regard to seeking external assurance

•

Governance
G4-34 Governance structure, including committees

•

G4-36 Positions with responsibility

•

Business ethics
G4-56 Ethics and integrity

•
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external impacts

internal impacts

management approach

Material aspects DMA and indicators

Omissions

External
Aspect
assurance boundary
limitations
outside
Hansel G421

Economic
responsibility
Indirect
economic
impacts

Hansel's aim is to
create savings for the
state

•

Central
government

Indicator has been reported regarding framework
agreements. Of indicator G4-EC9 the percentage of
procurement budget has not been reported, instead the
percentage of framework agreement in which regional
aspects have been considered, since Hansel does not
monitor its customers' procument budgets.

•

Aspect has
been
reported
concerning
framework
agreements
and its
impacts on
gentral
government
and contract
suppliers.

G4-EN27 indicator has been replaced with another,
since Hansel does not produce products and services
procured through framework agreements.

•

Contract
suppliers

CSR management
Estimate of savings
Savings through
centralised
procurement, G4-EC8
Procurement
practices

Trends affecting
procurement practices
Procurement process
Equal treatment of
suppliers
Framework agreements
in which regional
aspects are considered,
G4-EC9
Share of SME's in
framework agreements

Environmental
responsibility
Product and
services

Responsibility is a part
of the company's
strategy
Trends affecting
operations
Environmental
responsibility in
services and products
An indicator that is
suitable to Hansel's
operations is the
amount of central
procurement through
framework agreements
where environment is
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considered
Social
responsibility
Employment

Hansel's equality plan

•

Job satisfaction survey
and leadership
evaluation
Employee turnover, G4LA1
Education

Competence
development is
emphasized in Hansel's
strategy

Indicator G4-LA10b has not been reported, since such
career endings that the indicator refers to are very rare
and not material in Hansel.

•

Average hours of
training, G4-LA9
Programs for skills
management, G4-LA10
Anticorruption

Code of ethics
approved by the Board
of Directors

•

Contract
suppliers
Central
government

•

Central
government

•

The
screening of
the supplychain covers
contract
suppliers,
not subcontractors

No corruption cases
Training on code of
ethics, G4-SO4
Product and
service labelling

Hansel's stategic
objective is to assume a
strong role in
developing government
procurement
Customer satisfaction
Results of customer
satisfaction surveys,
G4-PR5

Supplier
assessment:
– Environmental
assessmentt
– Assessments
for impacts on
society

Considering
environmental aspects
Screening of new
suppliers using
environmental criteria,
G4-EN32
Risk analysis on the
social responsibility
Financial responsibility
in framework
agreements
Screening of new
suppliers using criteria
for impacts on society,
G4-SO9
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Key figure formulae and calculation principles
Equity ratio, % =

Shareholders' equity

x 100

Balance sheet total - Advances received

(Number of employees who entered employment 1 Jan. – 31 Dec. +
Average turnover, % =

Number of employees who ended their employment 1 Jan. – 31 Dec.) /2

x 100

Number of personnel on 31 Dec.

Exit rate, % =

Number of employees who ended their employment 1 Jan. – 31 Dec.

x 100

Number of personnel on 31 Dec.

Exit rate, resigned personnel, % =

Number of employees who resigned 1 Jan. – 31 Dec.

x 100

Number of personnel on 31 Dec.

Sick leave percentage =

Number of sickness absence days 1 Jan. – 31 Dec.

x 100

Theoretical working days 1 Jan. – 31 Dec.
The calculation method of the potential of framework agreements and utilisation rate applied in Hansel:
The calculation of potential is based on the ARPU (average revenue per user) model, in which a statistical ‘good’user level is set for
framework agreements and used to assess the potential maximum procurements for governmentaccounting units and companies from each
framework agreement. Hansel Ltd’s total framework agreementpotential is defined by adding the results from all framework agreements. The
utilisation rate, which hasbecome an important indicator for the company’s operations, is obtained by dividing central procurementsmade
through framework agreements by the potential.ARPU is a measure widely used by telecommunications operators, indicating how many
euros each customerspends on average monthly or annually on the company’s services in certain customer segments or product/service
categories.
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Independent assurance report
To the Management of Hansel Oy
We have been engaged by the Management of Hansel Oy (hereafter Hansel) to provide limited assurance
information presented for the reporting period 1.1.–31.12.2013 in the Corporate Responsibility report -section and
its subsections in Hansel’s electronic Annual Report 2013, (hereafter Sustainability Information).
The Management of Hansel is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Sustainability Information in
accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Sustainability Reporting Guidelines G4 core level.
Our responsibility is to carry out a limited assurance engagement and to express an independent conclusion on the
information subject to the assurance. We have conducted the engagement in accordance with the Finnish Institute
of Authorised Public Accountants’ Standard 3000 Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information. We do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Hansel for our
work, for this assurance report, or for the conclusions we have reached.

Limitations of the engagement
Data and information related to sustainability are subject to inherent limitations applying to data accuracy and
completeness, which are to be taken into account when reading our assurance report. The presented Sustainability
Information is to be considered in connection with the explanatory information on data collection, consolidation and
assessments provided by Hansel. Our assurance report is not intended for use in evaluating Hansel’s performance
in executing the sustainability principles Hansel has defined. To assess the financial state and performance of
Hansel, Hansel’s audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31 December 2013 is to be consulted.

The work performed in the engagement
Our assurance procedures are designed to obtain limited assurance on whether the Sustainability Information is
presented in accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Sustainability Reporting Guidelines G4 core level
in all material respects. A limited assurance engagement consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for the preparation of the Sustainability Information, and applying analytical and other evidence
gathering procedures, as appropriate. The evidence gathering procedures mentioned above are more limited than
for a reasonable assurance engagement, and therefore less assurance is obtained than in a reasonable assurance
engagement.
In our engagement we have performed the following procedures:
Interviews with three members of the management to reassert our understanding of the connection between Hansel’s sustainability
procedures and Hansel’s business strategy and operations as well as sustainability objectives;
An assessment of the Sustainability Information’s conformity with the principles of the G4 guidelines for defining content and
reporting quality;
An assessment of coverage of the material aspects selected for the Sustainability Information and the definition of reporting
boundaries in the context of Hansel’s business operations and sector;
A review of the performance data and assertions presented in the Sustainability Information, and testing of data accuracy and
completeness through samples from Hansel’s information systems;
An assessment of data management processes, information systems and working methods used to gather and consolidate the
presented Sustainability Information;
Comparison of the presented Sustainability Information to underlying rules of procedure, management and reporting systems as
well as documentation;

Based on the assurance procedures performed, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the information subject to the assurance engagement is not presented in accordance with the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI) Sustainability Reporting Guidelines G4 core level in all material respects.
Helsinki, March 28, 2014
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